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24

TRI AN PARTNERSY LTD
D/ R/ Option 2/ 43 12,50/2.55,000.1®0 502,|550.100166¢ .148 581 ,(439.59
DE SHAW COMPOYI TE
I NTERNATI ONAL |[FUNDS APRI|L 1. aa1,104,|/025,084,|02%3, 488,193, 588,(1232.98
1ST SUBSCRI PTI|ON
TYRUS CAPI TAL |[EVENT FUND
LTD January12 [sub - GpBY 91,94/6. 96 116|510, 711,|801. 42296, 306,|182.@9
BEACH POI NT TQTAL RETPYRN
OFFSHORE FUND |I'l is Spriles 8,477.361, 119%.91493, 885.19220.105 344,|420. 03
V - 01 NeGS¥X00|7
PERSHI NG SQUARE
I NTERNATI ONAL |[LTD - CLAS|IS 9,378.771,000.90373, 169.1704%. %5800, [ 4160..4157
E 19 R D
CQS DI RECTI ONAL
OPPORTUNI TI ES |[FEEDER FUN|D
CLASS B USD SHARES NON NEW2’32 .631,65%2.29847,%576.3%0641.987480, $48. 96
| SSUES
REDWOOD OPPORT|UNI TY
OFFSHORE FUND |[LTD COMMON 7,00¢0.001,000.D0000, $00.D0040¢.%25283, 131.4686
SHARES SERI ES |45
DKI'L (BVI) LTQO - CLASpB C .
TRANCHE 4 01 Aprili2 50, 00/0.00100}0»,000, 000.0D01)85%, 092, 2659. 38
BREVAN HOWARD |[CREDI T
CATALYSTS FUNDO - Clasp A 27,98/1.49 13402, 750, §00.34846)72, 105, 444. 48
USD
DKIL (BVI) LTO - CLASp C
TRANCHE 3 SERHS 1 JANPAR|Y 29, 46|9. 9513363, 937, 373.27%36)246, 015, 6¢52. 43
12 - GSY
REDWOOD OPPORTIUNI TY
JOFFSHORE FUND |[LTD COMMON 1,953.011,024.26000, 000.0004¢.25032, 0002. @0
SHARES SERI ES |55
DKI'L (BVI) LTDO- CLASS|C
AITRANCHE 3 SERHEHS 1 MAREH 3,000.00 100}56301,6%1.52102)188308, 6260932
11- GSY
DKIL (BVI) LTQHO- CLASS| C
TRANCHE 1 SERHBHS 1 JANPAR|Y 35804 39994143, 193.52409)03146, 4500115
12 - GSY
BREVAN HOWARD |CREDI T
4CATALYSTS FUND - Clasp A 1.¢0 0 0 19, 18/4. 3B9, 18|4.038]2
USD- Egq
FORTELUS SPECI|AL
4SI TUATI ONS FUND LTD C| asj|s 9. 9 12829 1,179%.00 4 . 5 42.1720. 40O
A USD- Series |SP2
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24

1$ng STREET EUROPE MUFUAL 79,688.82112)9%,000, 000.0D15]0%, 169, 21144 955
OZ EUROPE OVERSEAS FUND [ | s

2MUTUAL FUND 8,9971.801,000.24000, 000.D0014.91123, $8184.11/8
CQS ABS FEEDER FUND C|L B s

3 USD MUTUAL FunND 1,65¢0.833,937.81500, 000.49028¢.D22076, $751.1%60
SOTHI C CAPI TALl EUROPERAN .
4 MUTUAL EUND 59, 16/4.18101)44, 000, 000.0D10)76, 549, 45110 .0168
HALCYON OFFSHQRE AST BK A a
5FDMUTUAL FUND %,55L.101, 89. 62000, 000.D0834.66515, 4010 .4133
6|AG SUPER FUND |USD 5,500.001,000.90500, 000.D0080.97945, $3Db. 204
JPS CREDI T OPPJORTUNI T| ES

7|[FUND SER. A USD SER. 07| 2012 5,00¢.001,000.90000, 000.D001%2.99064, $37. 80
MUTUAL
CQS ABS ALPHA |[FEEDER FUNPD

8LIMICLASS B2 4,44¢.581,018%.488500,000.D0007%.45775,619.42
CASTLE HILL TQTAL RETPRN

gMUTUAL FUND 45, 00/0. 00100104, 500, 000.0m®8.|98,454,025. %2
AG SUPER I NTER CYYY S I XKJ

1 MUTUAL EUND 272117 1,23¢0.8234,992.34, 463.3398, 2900862
AG SUPER FUND |I NTL LTpPp UISD

1IMUTUAL FUND A SUPER FUNP 168407 1,254.58310,8%7.8D,631.7874, 2490983
I NTL LT
AG SUPER FD I NTERNATI PNA|L

LLTD CLASS vvy |Iseri Es b 12.]75 1,241.045,823.24,45¢.3118, 49|1.®.003
SOTHI C CAPI TALl EUR. OPPORJT.

1 CLASEQUALI ZATI|ON 1 0 0 13,49(1. 603, 49|]1.06.002
CQS ABS ALPHA |[FEEDER FUNPD

1ALTD EQUALI ZATI|ON 1 0 0 11,88|6. 211, 88|6.®.10 2
HALCYON OFFSHQRE ASSEJ C|L

q

! REST. USD APRI Ll 2012 SPEC| AL 0. ¢4 0 0 1,048.52 4611398.00
HALCYON OFFSHQRE ASSEJ L[TD

1(RESTD CLASS JAN 2012 0.01 0 0 1,29%.00 12.]1950. 00

24

24
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) 3 244,549 ,|8B%, 222 98.5|8 7, 7k8

- 105,144,181 251 101.25 7, 9B8

23 196,819,529, 400 88.8|7 6,985

10 142,756,008, 231 94.9/9 7,46

11 139,631,/001®m, 9B5 93.3l6 7, 3B8

12 140, 134,516, BE5 93.9|2 7,382

24 130, 142,|07®,. 379 97.2l4 7,643

132,591,550, 422 98.9[2 7, 7[5

134,258 ,[22®, %3 100.24 7, 8[79

105,144,181 251 101.25 7, 9B8

103,166, 582.1p® 99. 79 7,8k3

103,725,185 158 100.24 7,879

95,075,932, 003 103.34 8, 1p3
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22 115.58 11, 366
119. 00 9, 33
196, 702 ,|67%, 4% .
23 119. 21 11, 923
101. 37 , 96 8
63,926,1%7 04%
24 101. 18 , 9p 0
111. 71 , 7180
23 134,587,/4DQ 5§R
111. 98 11,012
110. 64 8, 6P96
10 116, 479 ,/82,51 F&#
111. 05 10, 921
99. 23 7,799
11 80, 260, 7&1 3B
99. 23 9, 7b5 8
98. 62 7, 7pH2
12 63,637,962 .05
98. 51 9,687
99. 66 7, 8133
24 64,548,355 .08k
99.51 9, 786
100. 41 7,802
65,519, 0b9 .1HD
100. 20 9, 8p 4
100. 99 7,938
65, 796, |1 56 .15
100. 79 9, 912
101. 37 7, 968
63,926,157 04%
101. 18 9,9p0
100. 93 7, 9B3
63,223,002 99D
100. 76 9,909
100. 89 7, 98B0
63,600, 2948 98B
100. 69 9, 902
102. 05 8,01
63,053,341 9%
101. 97 10,428
103. 25 8, 125
64, 347,853 .0FHB
103. 06 10, 35
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 APRIL 2012

As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
Notes US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Portfolio of investments 91,786 239,670
Current assets:
Debtors 7 8,794 9,196
Cash and bank balances 8 4,590 418

13,384 9,614
Less:
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 9 (26) (4,734)
Net current assets 13,358 4,880
Net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable participating shares 105,144 244,550

The financial statements on pages 7 to 19 were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management (Guernsey)
Limited, on 13 September 2012 and were signed on its behalf by:

Director

Director

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2012

Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
Notes US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Net capital (losses)/gains 3 (3,876) 4,859
Revenue 4 1 15
Finance costs: interest 12 (18) (20)
Operating expenses 5 (3,080) (4,805)
Net expenses (3,097) (4,810)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to
the holders of redeemable participating shares from
investment activities (6,973) 49

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 APRIL 2012

Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable participating shares at the start of the year 244,550 304,090
Movement due to issue and redemption of redeemable participating shares:
Amounts received/receivable on issues - 3,061
Less: amounts paid/payable on redemptions (132,433) (62,650)
(132,433) (59,589)

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable participating shares from
investment activities (6,973) 49
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Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable participating shares at the end of the year 105,144 244,550

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2012

Notes
Operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to the holders
of redeemable participating shares
Adjustments for:
Net capital losses/(gains) on non-derivative investments 3

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease in other debtors

Decrease in accrued expenses

Decrease/(increase) in unrealised gains on forward foreign
exchange contracts

Cash flow used in operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of investments
Sale of investments

Cash flow from investing activities

Financing activities

(Decrease)/increase in loans payable

Proceeds from issue of redeemable shares
Payments on redemptions of redeemable shares
Cash flow used in financing activities

Increase/(decrease) in cash for the year

Cash at the beginning of the year
Cash at the end of the year

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
US$'000 US$'000
(6,973) 49
1,761 (2,401)

17 41

(312) (103)

310 (170)

(5,197) (2,584)
(48,340) (80,754)
144,704 140,959
96,364 60,205
(4,356) 1,715

- 3,061

(82,639) (62,650)
(86,995) (57,874)
4172 (253)

418 671

4,590 418

771210
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Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

Increase/(decrease) in cash for the year
Cash flow from changes in debt
Movement in net debt in the year

Net debt at start of the year
Net cash at end of the year

15

4,172 (253)
4,356 (1,715)
8,528 (1,968)
(3,938) (1,970)
4,590 (3,938)

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

2

STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund (“the Fund”) is a sub-fund of HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, a Guernsey unit trust which is authorised as a Class B
Scheme under the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules, 1990.

The Fund owns 100% of the shares in HSBC Special Opportunities Investments Limited (“the Company”), a BVI registered company. The Fund also loaned
monies to the Company to fund its investing activities.

The Company owns the investments listed in the Portfolio of Investments. The purpose of the Company is to ensure that any withholding tax on
distributions from such investments may be reclaimed.

These financial statements include all the assets and liabilities of the Fund and the Company.
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the Fund's financial
statements:

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified by the revaluation of investments and in accordance with
applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (the “SORP”) issued by Investment Management
Association in October 2010.

Functional and presentational currency

The functional and presentational currency is US Dollar because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Fund operates.
Investments

Investments in investment funds are valued at the closing net asset value per share for the underlying investments that the Fund holds, as at 5 pm
(Guernsey time) on the Balance Sheet date. Realised and unrealised surpluses and deficits on investments are included on the Statement of Total Return.
Realised gains and losses on sales of securities are determined using the average cost method. Purchases and sales of the investments are accounted for
on a trade date plus one basis.

Revenue

Investment income and deposit interest are included on an accruals basis. All non-class specific income is allocated to each share class in proportion to the
number of redeemable participating shares in issue during the year. All class specific income is allocated to the share class to which it relates.

Expenses
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Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Total Return on an accruals basis. All non-class specific expenses are allocated to each share class in
proportion to the number of redeemable participating shares in issue during the year. All class specific expenses are allocated to the share class to which
they relate.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of UK Accounting Standards requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are translated to US Dollars at the foreign currency closing exchange rate ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The Fund reports the

realised exchange gain or loss as well as the unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation on non-US Dollar denominated investments in the Statement
of Total Return. Any realised exchange gains or losses as well as unrealised appreciation or depreciation arising from non-US Dollar denominated payables

and receivables and on foreign currency transactions are reflected in the Statement of Total Return.

Forward foreign_exchange contracts

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward foreign exchange contracts is calculated by reference to the difference between the contracted
rate and the rate to close out the contract. Unrealised appreciation is reported as an asset and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liability in the
Balance Sheet.

Cash
Cash comprises current deposits with banks.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs arise from credit facilities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the Statement of Total Return on an accruals basis.

Formation expense

In accordance with the Fund’'s Prospectus the formation costs will be amortised over a period not exceeding five years or such shorter period as the
Manager may determine. This treatment is in line with the Prospectus but not in line with UK Accounting Standards. This departure from UK Accounting
Standards does not have a material impact on the results reported in the financial statements.

Management Fee

The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee payable out of the assets of the Fund. The management fee shall be calculated and accrued at
each Valuation Point and in respect thereof the calculation shall be the Net Assets multiplied by the Management Fee Rate multiplied by the number of
days elapsed since the last Valuation Point divided by 365.
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Shares_in_issue

Redeemable participating shares are redeemable at the option of the holder of redeemable participating shares and will be classified as financial liabilities.

Limit on_Redemptions

The Manager may limit the number of shares in the Fund which may be redeemed to no more than 15% of the total number of shares in issue
immediately before the dealing date. Any shares failing to be redeemed upon the exercise of this discretion by the Manager will be carried forward to the
next dealing day and shall be redeemed pro rata in priority to any other shares in respect of which a redemption notice has subsequently been received.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

All of the financial assets and liabilities of the Fund are held at fair values.

Gains_and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities held or issued for trading

The net gain/loss on financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the Statement of Total Return. Realised gains and losses on the sale of securities are

determined using the average cost method.

3 NET CAPITAL (LOSSES)/GAINS Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
US$'000 US$'000
Net capital (losses)/gains on non-derivative investments (1,761) 2,401
Net capital (losses)/gains on derivative investments (2,115) 2,458
Total net capital (losses)/gains (3,876) 4,859
4 REVENUE Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
US$'000 US$'000
Interest income 1 1
Miscellaneous income - 14
1 15
5 OPERATING EXPENSES Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
US$'000 US$'000
Payable to the Manager and its associates:
Management fees (2,774 (4,405)
Payable to the Trustee and its associates:
Trustee fees (171) (273)

83/210



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DOo0o0DogOooO(ELs060)
OOooooooooooooooooOo

Other expenses:

Audit fees (24) (24)
Other sundry expenses (111) (103)

(135) (127)
Total expenses (3,080) (4,805)

6 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 8 February 2007, which constituted the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund, HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited

was appointed the Manager of the Fund, dealing with its administrative affairs. The Manager receives a fee of 1.65% of the net asset value per annum for
the US Dollar Class and the Euro Class, and a fee of 0.90% for Institutional Class (US Dollar) and Institutional Class (Euro). The Management fee for the

year amounted to US$2,774,493 (2011: US$4,405,313). The fee outstanding at year end was US$Nil (2011: US$302,670).

84/210



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DOo0o0DogOooO(ELs060)
OOooooooooooooooooOo

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 8 February 2007, which constituted the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund, HSBC Private Bank (Guernsey) Limited
was appointed the Trustee. With effect 31 May 2008, the Trustee changed its name to HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited. The Trustee receives a fee of
0.10% of the net asset value per annum. The Trustee fee for the year amounted to US$171,103 (2011: US$273,400). The fee outstanding at the year end
was US$NIl (2011: US$18,611).

Under the terms of an agreement dated 8 February 2007, the Manager appointed HSBC Alternative Investments Limited as the Investment Adviser of the
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund. The Investment Adviser receives a performance fee of 10% of the excess of the benchmark which is the 3 Month
LIBOR plus 5% rate of the relevant currency prevailing during the relevant period. There was no performance fee paid during or outstanding at the year
end or during the prior period.

7 DEBTORS

As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
US$'000 US$'000
Sales awaiting settlement 1,782 8,817
Amounts paid in advance of investment purchased* 7,000 -

Unrealised gains on forward foreign exchange
contracts (see Note 13) 10 360
Other debtors 2 19
8,794 9,196

* At 30 April 2012 the Fund paid US$7,000,000 in advance of purchasing shares in the Redwood Opportunity Offshore Fund. The shares were purchased
by the Fund on 1 May 2012.

8 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

As at As at

30 April 2012 30 April 2011

US$'000 US$'000

Cash and bank balances 4,590 418

Cash balances are held by State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Custodian”). The credit rating of State Street Corporation, the parent
company of State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited, at 30 April 2012 was A+ (2011: A+).

9 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
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US$'000 US$'000
Loans payable (see Note 12) - (4,356)
Unrealised losses on forward foreign exchange
contracts (see Note 13) - (40)
Accrued Trustee fees - (29)
Accrued Management fees - (303)
Other creditors (26) (16)
(26) (4,734)

10 TAXATION STATUS
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The umbrella fund, HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, is exempt from Guernsey income tax under the Income Tax (Exempt Bodies) (Guernsey) Ordinances

1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP 600 (2011: GBP 600).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES IN ISSUE
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Number Number Number Number Number
Institutional Institutional Total
US Dollar Euro Class Class
Class Class (US Dollar) (Euro)*
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at 1 May 2011 2,166,593.95 167,159.83 76,000.00 - 2,409,753.78
Issued on subscriptions - - - - -
Redemptions (1,261,552.69) (107,178.02) (19,948.60) - (1,388.679.31)
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at 30 April 2012 905,041.26 59,981.81 56,051.40 - 1,021,074.47
Number Number Number Number Number
Institutional Institutional Total
UsS Dollar Euro Class Class
Class Class (US Dollar) (Euro)*
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at 1 May 2010 2,646,844.67 211,593.46 111,761.03 32,220.00 3,002,419.16
Issued on subscriptions 9,178.26 17,801.48 - - 26,979.74
Redemptions (489,428.98) (62,235.11) (35,761.03) (32,220.00) (619,645.12)
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at 30 April 2011 2,166,593.95 167,159.83 76,000.00 - 2,409,753.78

All series of shares rank equally for allocation of income and expenses and have

Institutional
US Dollar Euro Class
Class Class (US Dollar)
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Net Assets at 30 April 2012 91,630 7,628 5,886
Net Assets at 30 April 2011 213,582 23,247 7,721
Net Assets at 30 April 2010 262,337 26,583 11,337

* The Institutional Class (Euro) was fully redeemed on 31 March 2011.
12 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited acts as Trustee to the Fund.

Loan

the same rights attached to them.

Institutional

Class

(Euro)*
US$'000

3,833

Total
US$'000

105,144
244,550

304,090

The Fund has the ability to borrow up to 25% of its net asset value for a period of up to three months to cover a cash shortfall caused by mismatched
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settlement dates on purchase and sale transactions and to fund redemptions; and for investment purposes, subject to a maximum of 10% of the Fund’'s net

asset value, to facilitate additional investment in Investment Funds. There were no breaches of these borrowing restrictions by the Fund during the year.

HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited provided credit facilities to the Fund during the year. At the year end the loan outstanding was US$Nil (2011:
US$4,356,000). The interest paid during the year was US$18,181 (2011: US$20,344).
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13 FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Assets may be denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of each share class and
certain currency exposure will be hedged back to the relevant share class currency. Hedging for this
purpose may be by means of forward foreign exchange contracts or options on such contracts or by
using such other derivative instruments as may be available and having the same or similar effect. The
Investment Adviser retains the right to vary the policy on currency hedging at its absolute discretion. All
costs of such hedging will be met by the holders of the relevant share class only.

The following forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2012 in respect
of the hedging of the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gain

Uss

31-May-12 EURS5,691,000 US$7,525,551 State Street London 10,370
10,370

Net unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 10,370

The following forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2011 for the
purposes of hedging foreign currency assets on the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Loss

USss

31-May-11 US$2,545,381 EUR1,743,000 State Street London (40,450)
(40,450)

The following forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2011 in respect
of the hedging of the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gain
uss

31-May-11 EUR15,537,000 US$22,689,380 State Street London 360,577

360,577

Total unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts (40,540)

Total unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 360,577

Net unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 320,037

14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The main risks arising from the Fund’s financial instruments are market price risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Market price risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents
the potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price

movements. The Investment Adviser considers the asset allocation of the portfolio in order to minimise

the risk associated with particular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund's

investment objective.

Market risk embodies the potential for both loss and gains and includes currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk. The profitability of the Fund’s investment programme depends to a great extent on
correct assessments of the future course of price movements of securities and equities and other
investments. There can be no assurance that the Manager will be able to accurately predict these price
movements. The securities markets have in recent years been characterised by great volatility and
unpredictability. With respect to the investment strategy into which the Investment Adviser has invested

89/210



EDINETOO OO
0000000000000000000000(E15060)
(o oo o o s o o o o o e o

the Fund's assets, there is always some, and from time to time a significant, degree of market risk.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Market price risk (continued)

Details of the Fund's investment portfolio at the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the Portfolio of
Investments included on pages 20.

(a) Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors
specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all investments traded in the
market.

The Fund is required to comply with the standard investment and borrowing restrictions as defined in
the Prospectus. The Fund’'s investment restrictions are monitored on a regular basis by the Trustee of
the Fund and reviewed quarterly by the Board of Directors of the Manager. There are specific
guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come close to
restriction levels.

(b) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund’s financial assets are investments in investment funds which neither pay
interest nor have a maturity date. The underlying funds the Fund invests in are exposed to interest rate
risk; however, the Fund mitigates this risk by diversifying its investments.

The Fund has borrowed US$Nil at year end (2011: US$4,356,000) which bears no interest (2011:
1.040%).

The Fund is exposed to variable interest rates on cash and bank balances of US$4,589,570 (2011:
US$418,108).

(c Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies
other than its functional currency. Consequently the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of
its currency relative to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on
the value of that portion of the Fund’'s assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than US
Dollars.

The Funds currency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with
policies and procedures in place. All currency exposure at the portfolio level is hedged into the currency
of the relevant share class on a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund’s overall
currency positions and exposures are monitored on a monthly basis by the Manager.

The Fund also offers redeemable participating shares denominated in Euro exposing the Fund to foreign
currency risk. This risk is mitigated by the Fund entering into forward foreign exchange contracts as
described further in this note.

The following table sets out the Fund’'s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to
the foreign currencies at 30 April 2012.

Currency Total Total Forward FX Net
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Euro - (7,536) 7,536
US Dollar 105,134 7,526 97,608
105,134 10 105,144

The following table sets out the Fund’'s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to
the foreign currencies at 30 April 2011.

Currency Total Total Forward FX Net
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Euro 2,395 20,464 22,859

US Dollar 241,835 (20,144) 221,691
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244,230 320 244,550
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or
commitment that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and also bears the risk of settlement
default. The Fund minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with a large
number of counterparties on recognised and reputable exchanges.

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting settlement. Risk relating
to unsettled transactions is considered small due to the short settlement period involved and the high
credit quality of the brokers used. The Fund monitors the credit rating and financial positions of the
brokers used to further mitigate the credit risk of underlying investments.

Substantially, all of the assets of the Fund are held by State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited
(the “Custodian”). Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund's rights with respect
to securities held by the Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Fund monitors its risk by monitoring
the credit quality and financial positions of the Custodian the Fund uses. The credit rating of State
Street Corporation, the parent company of State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited at 30 April
2012 was A+ (2011: A+).

The credit rating of HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited who provided credit facilities to the Fund during
the year, at 30 April 2012 was AA- (2011: AA).

In addition the Fund has indirect exposure to credit risk through the credit risk held by the underlying
fund investments.

Liquidity risk

The main liability of the Fund is the redemption of any shares that investors wish to sell. The risk is
that the Fund might not be able to liquidate investment positions in order to repay amounts demanded
by its shareholders.

The Fund's liquidity risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with
policies and procedures in place. It is not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds,
limited partnerships or other vehicles that have no liquidity. The Fund’s overall liquidity risks are
monitored on a monthly basis by the Manager.

The Fund’s investment restrictions, as defined in the Prospectus, some of which pertain to the
management of liquidity risk and concentrations thereof are monitored on a continuous basis by the
Trustee of the Fund. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and
situations where holdings come close to restriction levels.

On 30 September 2011 the private and illiquid holdings held by the Fund were transferred to the SOF

Realisation Fund which was created to hold these investments. Therefore at 30 April 2012 the Fund
had no private and illiquid holdings.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued)
At the 30 April 2011 the following investee funds had put in place restrictions which limit the Fund’s

ability to redeem its investment holdings.
Market Value at

30 April 2011
US$'000
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Limited (The) - Euro S Class 1,315
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund (The) - USD S Class 2,060
D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund L.P. - April 1" Side Pocket 1,428
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd. - Class A USD SP2 87
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd. - Class A USD SP4 A 78
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd. - Class A USD SP4 C 42
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd. - Class A USD SP5 336
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd. - Class A USD SP5 D 189
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd. - Class A USD SP5 F 203

Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Offshore Fund, L.P. - Class L
Series 1 150
Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Offshore Fund, L.P. - Class R 17,542

Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Offshore Fund, L.P. - Class R
(Special Investments) 3,445
Jana Offshore Partners Ltd - Class B (Restricted) Series 01/2002 108
Jana Offshore Partners Ltd - Class B (Restricted) Series 07/2007 93
OZ Europe Overseas Fund Il, Ltd. - Class M Prime Accumulation 3,337
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd. Class B-1 Restricted Series 2 3,284
Steel Partners Il (Offshore), Ltd. 6,471
SVRF (Offshore) Holdings Ltd. - USD Class - V2-OE/1 2,506
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd. - Series 1 Special Investment 1,415
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd. - Series 2 Special Investment 1,254
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd. - Series 3 Special Investment 1,305
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd. - Series 4 Special Investment 549
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd. - Series 5 Special Investment 12
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd. - Series 7 Special Investment 140
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd. - Series 8 Special Investment 116
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd. - Series 9 Special Investment 5
47,470
15 ANALYSIS OF CHANGE IN NET CASH/DEBT

At 30 April 2012 Cash flow At 30 April 2011
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Cash and bank balances 4,590 4,172 418
Loans payable - 4,356 (4,356)
Net Cash 4,590 8,528 (3,938)

16 DISTRIBUTION POLICY
The Manager does not recommend the payment of a dividend. All income will be “rolled-up”, thereby
income will not be distributed but will be retained in the Fund and reflected in the net asset value per
share.

17 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Fund had no commitment or contingent liabilities as at 30 April 2012 and 30 April 2011.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
18 FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES

The following foreign exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into the reporting
currency (US Dollars):

As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
Euro 0.7553 0.6731

19 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR
On 31 March 2011, shares in the Institutional Class (Euro) were fully redeemed.
On 30 September 2011, the private and illiquid holdings held by the Fund, to the value of
US$49,793,798, were transferred to the SOF Realisation Fund which was created to hold these
investments.

20 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no significant events subsequent to the year end date that require adjustment to, or
disclosure in these financial statements.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2012 (UNAUDITED)

Security Description Holding Market value % of total
US$'000 net assets
EUR (2011: 0.85%)

USD (2011: 97.15%)
Beach Point Total Return Offshore Fund Il - IS Series V 01

Nov 2007 GSY 8,477 10,077 9.58
Brevan Howard Credit Catalysts Fund - Class A USD 83,945 11,939 11.35
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B
USD Shares Non New Issues 3,195 10,903 10.37
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 4 50,000 5,022 4.79
Davidson Kempner International Ltd. - Class C Tranche 1
Series 1 Jan 12 — GSY 358 144 0.14
Davidson Kempner International Ltd. - Class C Tranche 3
Series 1 Jan 12 — GSY 29,470 3,959 3.77
Davidson Kempner International Ltd. - Class C Tranche 3
Series 1 Mar 11 — GSY 3,000 304 0.29
D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund - April 1% Subscription 1 13,158 12.51
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd. - Class A USD SP2 9 - -
Pershing Square International Ltd. - Class D Series 1R 4,456 10,137 9.64
Trian Partners, Ltd. - Class D Restricted Option 2 Series 43 12,503 14,982 14.25
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd. - Jan 12 Subscription - GSY 91,947 11,161 10.61
91,786 87.30
Portfolio of Investments (2011: 98.00%) 91,786 87.30
Net current assets (including derivatives) 13,358 12.70
Total net assets 105,144 100.00
Net asset value per share As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - US Dollar Class US$101.25 US$98.58
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Institutional Class (US Dollar) US$105.07 US$101.60
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class EUR96.05 EUR93.67

Portfolio classification

As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
Securities with an official stock exchange listing - 8.70%
Unlisted securities 100.00% 91.30%
100.00% 100.00%

Sector Allocation
As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
Event Driven 43.40% -
Multi-Strategy 22.80% -
Cash & expenses 12.90% 1.60%
Credit Long/Short 11.30% -
Distressed 9.60% -
Multi Strategy/Event Driven - 61.80%
Equity Long/Short - 20.50%
High Yield/Distressed - 16.10%

100.00% 100.00%

96/210



EDINETOOOO
0000000000000000000000(E15060)
0o00000000o0ooooood

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2012*
(UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Description Nominal Cost
US$'000
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd - Jan 12 Subscription - GSY 91,947 10,712
Beach Point Total Return Offshore Fund Il - IS Series V Nov 2007 - GSY 8,477 9,494
Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situation Offshore Fund, L.P. - Series Mar 2007 1 6,576
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 4 50,000 5,000
Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situation Offshore Fund, L.P. - Series Jul 2007 1 4,100
Davidson Kempner International Ltd. - Class C Tranche 3 Series 1 Jan 12 - GSY 29,470 3,937
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd. - Special Investment Holdback 622 622
Davidson Kempner International Ltd. - Class C Tranche 3 Series 1 Mar 11 - GSY 3,000 302
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - Euro S Class 1,392 145
Davidson Kempner International Ltd. - Class C Tranche 1 Series 1 Jan 12 - GSY 358 143
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - Euro S Class - GSY 1,199 117
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd. - Class B Restricted USD Series 01-08 46 71
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd. - Class B Restricted USD Series 10-07 28 40
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd. - Series 143 32 34
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd. - Class S-1 VF33 Series 1 29 19
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd. - Class S-3 VF40 Series 1 18 12
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd. - Class S-1 VF29 Series 1 7 7
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd. - Class S-1 VF32 Series 1 1,498 5
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd. - Class A USD Series SP2 9 1
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd. - Class A USD SP 2 3 1
Sales
Description Nominal Proceeds
US$'000
Pershing Square International Ltd. - Class D Series 1R 9,265 20,554
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B USD Shares Non New
Issues 4,532 14,000
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd. - Series 143 11,790 11,540
Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situation Offshore Fund, L.P. - Series Mar 2007 1 10,746
Third Point Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class F Series 33 100,000 10,721
Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Offshore Fund, L.P. - Class R 1 10,677
Third Point Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class F Series 34 100,000 10,105
Trian Partners, Ltd. - Class D Restricted Option 2 Series52 8,200 8,840
Avenue International Ltd. - Class A Series 03 0211 1,000 8,551
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd. - Class B Restricted USD Series 10-07 5,210 7,335
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd. - Class B Restricted USD Series 01-08 5,357 7,111
D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund - April 1% Subscription 1 7,001
Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situation Offshore Fund, L.P. - Series Jul 2007 1 6,700
Steel Partner Holdings L.P. 450,926 6,471
RAB Special Situations Fund Ltd. - USD Class B 6,562 5,303
Highland Crusader Il Fund Ltd. 3 4,660
Brevan Howard Credit Catalysts Fund - Class A USD 27,981 3,774
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd. - Class B-1 Restricted Series 2 4,534 3,683
Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situation Offshore Fund, L.P. - Class R
(Special Investments) 1 3,529
OZ Europe Overseas Fund Il, Ltd. - Class M Prime Accumulation 4,746 3,238

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security
exceeding 2% of the net assets of the Fund at the start of the year. In any event, the 20 largest
purchases and the 20 largest sales must be shown.
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 APRIL 2012

As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
Notes US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Portfolio of investments 50,472 208,137
Current assets:
Debtors 7 2,569 1,665
Cash and bank balances 8 11,276 98

13,845 1,763
Less:
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 9 (391) (13,197)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 13,454 (11,434)
Net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable participating shares 63,926 196,703

The financial statements on pages 7 to 17 were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management (Guernsey)
Limited,on 13 September 2012 and were signed on its behalf by:

Director

Director

The notes on pages 9 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2012

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
Notes US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Net capital (losses)/gains 3 (10,912) 12,850
Revenue 4 27 2
Finance costs: interest 12 47 (62)
Operating expenses 5 (1,914) (2,887)
Net expenses (1,934) (2,947)

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to
the holders of redeemable participating shares
from investment activities (12,846) 9,903

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2012

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Net assets attributable to the holders
of redeemable participating shares at 196,703
the start of the year 192,290

Movement due to issue and
redemption of redeemable participating
shares:

Amounts received/receivable on issues 89,368 50,788
Less: amounts paid/payable on
redemptions (209,299) (56,278)
(119,931) (5,490)

(Decrease)/increase in net assets

attributable to the holders of

redeemable participating shares from

investment activities (12,846) 9,903

Net assets attributable to the holders
of redeemable participating shares at 63,926 196,703
the end of the year

The notes on pages 9 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

2

STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund (“the Fund”) is a sub-fund of HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund,
a Guernsey unit trust which is authorised as a Class B Scheme under the Collective Investment
Schemes (Class B) Rules, 1990.

The Fund was formerly known as the Distressed Markets Fund. The Fund was renamed on the 30
October 2011, due to a change in the investment focus of the Fund. This resulted in other changes to
the Fund’'s scheme particulars, see note 18 for further details.

The Fund owns 100% of the shares in HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Investments Limited (“the
Company”), a BVI registered company. The Fund also loaned monies to the Company to fund its
investing activities.

The Company owns the investments listed in the Portfolio of Investments. The purpose of the Company
is to ensure that any withholding tax on distributions from such investments may be reclaimed.

These financial statements include all the assets and liabilities of the Fund and the Company.
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are
considered material in relation to the Fund's financial statements:

Basis _of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified by the
revaluation of investments and in accordance with applicable UK Accounting Standards and the
Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (the “SORP”) issued by Investment
Management Association in October 2010.

Functional and presentational currency

The financial statements are presented in US Dollars which is the functional and presentational currency
of the Fund reflecting the fact that this is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Fund operates.

Investments

Investments in investment funds are valued at the closing net asset value per share for the underlying
investments that the Fund holds, as at 5 pm (Guernsey time) on the Balance Sheet date. Realised and
unrealised surpluses and deficits on investments are included on the Statement of Total Return.
Realised gains and losses on sales of securities are determined using the average cost method.
Purchases and sales of the investments are accounted for on a trade date plus one basis.

Revenue

Investment income and deposit interest are included on an accruals basis. All non-class specific income
is allocated to each share class in proportion to the number of redeemable participating shares in issue
during the year. All class specific income is allocated to the share class to which it relates.

Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Total Return on an accruals basis. All non-class specific
expenses are allocated to each share class in proportion to the number of redeemable participating
shares in issue during the year. All class specific expenses are allocated to the share class to which
they relate.

Use of estimates_and_judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles
of UK Accounting Standards requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Foreign currency_transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to US Dollars at the
foreign currency closing exchange rate ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The Fund reports the realised
exchange gain or loss as well as the unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation on non-US
Dollar denominated investments in the Statement of Total Return. Any realised exchange gains or
losses as well as unrealised appreciation or depreciation arising from non-US Dollar denominated
payables and receivables and on foreign currency transactions are reflected in the Statement of Total
Return.

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward foreign exchange contracts is calculated by
reference to the difference between the contracted rate and the rate to close out the contract.

Unrealised appreciation is reported as an asset and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liability in

the Balance Sheet.

Cash

Cash comprises current deposits with banks.

Cash Flow Statement

Under Financial Reporting Standard No. 1 (Revised) the Fund is exempt from the requirement to
prepare a cash flow statement as it complies with the conditions for open-ended investment funds.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs arise from credit facilities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the
Statement of Total Return on an accruals basis.

Formation_expense

In accordance with the Fund’'s Prospectus the formation costs may be amortised over a period not
exceeding five years or such shorter period as the Manager may determine. This treatment is in line
with the Prospectus but not in line with UK Accounting Standards, this departure from UK Accounting
Standards does not have a material impact on the results reported in the financial statements.

Management fee

The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee payable out of the assets of each Fund. The
management fee shall be calculated and accrue at each Valuation Point and in respect thereof the
calculation shall be the Net Assets multiplied by the Management Fee Rate multiplied by the number of
days elapsed since the last Valuation Point divided by 365.
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Performance fee

The Manager at each Valuation Point will be entitled to accrue a Performance Fee (the “Fee”) if the
percentage increase in the Net Asset Value at the relevant Valuation Point compared with the Net
Asset Value Per Share at the start of the current Performance Period (the “Increase”) exceeds the
calculated return on the relevant Index (the “Index Return”) and the Net Asset Value per Share at the
start of the Performance Period is not less than the Net Asset Value per Share at the end of any
previous Performance Period.

The performance fee is calculated quarterly in March, June, September and December. Should the
Increase at a Valuation Point exceed the Index Return on such day, the Manager will be entitled to
accrue a Fee calculated by applying the Performance Fee Rate to such excess multiplied by the
number of Shares in issue at that Valuation Point.

Shares in_issue

Redeemable participating shares are redeemable at the option of the holder of redeemable participating
shares and will be classified as financial liabilities. The Manager may limit the number of shares which
may be redeemed to not more than 15% of the total number of shares in issue immediately before the
dealing date. Any shares failing to be redeemed upon the exercise of this discretion by the Manager
shall be carried forward to the next dealing day and shall be redeemed pro-rata in priority to any other
shares in respect of which a redemption notice has subsequently been received.

Fair_values of financial assets and financial liabilities held or issued for trading

All of the financial assets and liabilities of the Fund are held at fair values.

Gains_and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities

The net gain/loss on financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the Statement of Total Return.
Realised gains and losses on sale of securities are determined using the average cost method.

3 NET CAPITAL (LOSSES)/GAINS

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2012 30 April 2011

US$'000 US$'000

Net capital (losses)/gains on non-derivative investments (8,297) 9,328

Net capital (losses)/gains on derivative investments (2,615) 3,522

Total net capital (losses)/gains (10,912) 12,850
REVENUE

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2012 30 April 2011

US$'000 US$'000

Interest income 2 2

Miscellaneous income 25 -
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5 OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
US$'000 US$'000

Payable to the Manager and its associates:
Management fee (1,708) (2,882)

Performance fee *293
(1,708) (2,589)
Payable to the Trustee and its associates:
Trustee fees (111) (195)
Other expenses:
Audit fees (24) (24)
Formation expenses (55) (13)
Other sundry expenses (16) (66)
(95) (103)
Total expenses (1,914) (2,887)

* Due to reversal of uncrystallised performance fee at 30 April 2010.
6 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the terms of the Trust deed dated 20 January 2009, HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited was
appointed the Manager of the Fund, dealing with its administrative affairs. The Manager receives a fee
of 1.65% of the net asset value per annum for the US Dollar Class and the Euro Class, and a fee of
0.90% for the Institutional Class (US Dollar). The Management fee for the year amounted to
US$1,708,248 (2011: US$2,881,578). The fee outstanding at the year end was US$971 (2011: US$
222,525).

Under the terms of the Trust deed dated 20 January 2009, HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited was
appointed the Trustee. The Trustee receives a fee of 0.10% of the net asset value per annum. The
Trustee fee for the year amounted to US$111,364 (2011: US$194,870). The fee outstanding at the year
end was US$59 (2011: US$15,081).

Under the terms of the Trust deed 20 January 2009, the Manager appointed HSBC Alternative

Investments Limited as the Investment Adviser of the HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund. The

Investment Adviser receives a Performance Fee of 10% of the new “excess” value over the index which
is the 3 month LIBOR plus 5% rate of the relevant currency prevailing during the relevant period. For a
Performance Fee to be payable, the Net Asset Value at the start of the reference period must be less

than the Performance Fee at the end of the reference period. The Performance Fee credit for the year

amounted to US$25 (2011: US$292,823). The fee outstanding at the year end was US$3,118 (2011:

US$3,143).

7 DEBTORS

As at As at

30 April 2012 30 April 2011

US$'000 US$'000

Amounts paid in advance of investments purchased 2,000 -

Sales awaiting settlement 420 1,137
Unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange

contracts (see Note 13) 16 479

Other debtors 133 49

2,569 1,665
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
US$'000 US$'000
Cash and bank balances 11,276 98

Cash balances are held by State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Custodian”) and
HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited. The credit rating of State Street Corporation, the parent company of
the Custodian, at 30 April 2012 was A+ (2011: A+). The credit rating of HSBC Private Bank (C.l.)
Limited at 30 April 2012 was AA- (2011: AA).

9 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

As at As at

30 April 2012 30 April 2011

US$'000 US$'000

Loans payable (see Note 12) - (11,820)
Amounts received in advance of shares subscribed (289) (1,010)
Accrued Trustee fee (see Note 6) - (15)
Accrued Management fee (see Note 6) (8] (223)
Accrued Performance fee (see Note 6) 3) 3)
Other creditors (98) (126)
(391) (13,197)

10 TAXATION STATUS

The umbrella fund, HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, is exempt from Guernsey income tax under the
Income Tax (Exempt Bodies) (Guernsey) Ordinances 1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of
GBP 600 (2011: GBP 600).

11 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES IN ISSUE

Number Number Number Number
Institutional Total
US Dollar Class Euro
Class (US Dollar) Class
Redeemable Participating Shares
in issue at 1 May 2011 1,010,507.68 380,769.46 173,433.02 1,564,710.16
Issued on Subscriptions 559,590.99 166,130.42 114,417.08 840,138.49

Redemptions
Redeemable Participating Shares
in issue at 30 April 2012

Redeemable Participating Shares
in issue at 23 April 2010

Issued on Subscriptions
Redemptions

Redeemable Participating Shares
in issue at 30 April 2011

(1,114,765.67)

(484,777.42)

(202,273.17)

(1,801,816.26)

455,333.00 62,122.46 85,576.93 603,032.39
Number Number Number Number
Institutional Total

US Dollar Class Euro

Class (US Dollar) Class
1,032,295.32 389,319.62 181,933.68 1,603,548.62
262,175.87 75,025.35 76,459.49 413,660.71
(283,963.51) (83,575.51) (84,960.15) (452,499.17)
1,010,507.68 380,769.46 173,433.02 1,564,710.16

All series of shares rank equally for allocation of income and expenses and have the same rights

attached to them.
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES IN INSSUE (CONTINUED)

On 30 October 2011 the Fund changed its name from HSBC Distressed Markets Fund to HSBC Credit
Market Opportunities Fund due to a change in the investment focus of the Fund. As a result the net
asset value per share at 30 October 2011 was rebased to USD 100 or Euro 100 as appropriate, and
the number of shares held by each shareholder was amended accordingly.

Institutional
US Dollar Class Euro
Class (US Dollar) Class Total
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Net Assets at 30 April 2012 46,155 6,307 11,464 63,926
Net Assets at 30 April 2011 120,245 45,771 30,687 196,703
Net Assets at 30 April 2010 119,204 45,089 27,997 192,290

12 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited acts as Trustee to the Fund.

Loan

The Fund has the ability to borrow up to 25% of its net asset value for a period of up to six months
to cover a cash shortfall caused by mismatched settlement dates on purchase and sale transactions
and to fund redemptions; and for investment purposes, subject to a maximum of 10% of the Fund’'s net
asset value, to facilitate additional investment in Investment Funds. There were no breaches of these
borrowing restrictions by the Fund during the year.

HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited provided credit facilities to the Fund during the year. At the year end
the loan outstanding was Nil (2011: US$11,820,000). The interest paid during the year was US$47,142
(2011: US$62,286).

13 FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

The Fund may utilise derivative contracts for the purpose of hedging against foreign currency risk only
and is prohibited from investing in derivative instruments for speculative purposes. No more than 15%
of the Fund’s net asset value may be utilised as margin or premium to effect these transactions. Assets
may be denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of each share class and certain
currency exposure will be hedged back to the relevant share class currency. Hedging for this purpose
may be by means of forward foreign exchange contracts or options on such contracts or by using such
other derivative instruments as may be available and having the same or similar effect. The Investment
Adviser retains the right to vary the policy on currency hedging at its absolute discretion. All costs of
such hedging will be met by the holders of the relevant share class only.

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2012 for the purposes
of hedging foreign currency assets on the HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund — Euro

Class.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gain
Uss$

31/05/12 EUR 8,584,000 US$ 11,351,138 State Street Bank London 15,641

Total unrealised gains on forward foreign exchange contracts 15,641

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2011 for the purposes

of hedging foreign currency assets on the HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund — Euro

Class.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gain
uss

31/05/11 EUR 20,655,000 US$ 30,163,426 State Street Bank London 479,354

Total unrealised gains on forward foreign exchange contracts 479,354
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The main risks arising from the Fund’s financial instruments are market price risk, liquidity risk and
credit risks.

Market price risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents
the potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price

movements. The Investment Adviser considers the asset allocation of the portfolio in order to minimise

the risk associated with particular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund's

investment objective.

Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes currency risk, interest rate
risk and price risk. The profitability of the Fund’'s investment programme depends to a great extent on
correct assessments of the future course of price movements of securities and equities and other
investments. There can be no assurance that the Manager will be able to accurately predict these price
movements. The securities markets have in recent years been characterised by great volatility and
unpredictability. With respect to the investment strategy into which the Investment Adviser has invested
the Fund's assets, there is always some, and from time to time a significant, degree of market risk.

Details of the Fund's investment portfolio at the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the Portfolio of
Investments included on page 18.

(a) Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors
specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all investments traded in the
market.

The Fund is required to comply with the standard investment and borrowing restrictions as defined in
the Prospectus. The Fund’'s investment restrictions are monitored on a regular basis by the Trustee of
the Fund and reviewed quarterly by the Board of Directors of the Manager. There are specific
guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come close to
restriction levels.

(b) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund’s financial assets are investments in investment funds which neither pay
interest nor have a maturity date. The underlying funds the fund invests in are exposed to interest rate
risk; however the Fund mitigates this risk by diversifying its investments.

The Fund is exposed to variable interest rates on cash and bank balances of US$11,275,674 (2011:
US$98,299).

The Fund has borrowed Nil (2011: US$11,820,000) at year end which bears no interest (2011: 1.040%).
To minimise interest rate risk the Fund enters into floating rate loan agreements.

(c) Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies
other than its functional currency. Consequently the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of
its currency relative to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on
the value of that portion of the Fund’'s assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than US
Dollars.

The Fund also offers redeemable participating shares denominated in Euro exposing the Fund to foreign
currency risk. This risk is mitigated by the Fund entering into forward foreign exchange contracts as
described further in this note.

The Funds currency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with
policies and procedures in place. All currency exposure at the portfolio level is hedged into the currency
of the relevant share class on a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund’'s overall
currency positions and exposures are monitored on a monthly basis by the Manager.
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Market price risk (continued)
(c) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table sets out the Fund’'s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to
the foreign currencies at 30 April 2012.

Currency Total Total Forward FX Net
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Euro - 11,367 11,367
US Dollar 63,910 (11,351) 52,559
63,910 16 63,926

The following table sets out the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to
the foreign currencies at 30 April 2011.

Currency Total Total Forward FX Net
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Euro - 30,642 30,642
US Dollar 196,224 (30,163) 166,061
196,224 479 196,703
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or
commitment that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and also bears the risk of settlement
default. The Fund minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with a large
number of counterparties on recognised and reputable exchanges.

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting settlement. Risk relating
to unsettled transactions is considered small due to the short settlement period involved and the high
credit quality of the brokers used. The Fund monitors the credit rating and financial positions of the
brokers used to further mitigate the credit risk of underlying investments.

Substantially, all of the assets of the Fund are held by State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited
(the “Custodian”). Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund's rights with respect
to securities held by the Custodian to be delayed or limited.

The Fund monitors its risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial positions of the Custodian the
Fund uses. The credit rating of State Street Corporation, the parent company of the Custodian, at 30
April 2012 was A+ (2011: A+).

The credit rating of HSBC Private Bank (C.l.) Limited who provided credit facilities to the Fund during
the year, at 30 April 2012 was AA- (2011: AA).

In addition the Fund has indirect exposure to credit risk through the credit risk held by the underlying
fund investments.

Liquidity risk

The main liability of the Fund is the redemption of any shares that investors wish to sell. The risk is
that the Fund might not be able to liquidate investments positions in order to repay amounts demanded
by its shareholders.

The Fund’s liquidity risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with
policies and procedures in place. It is not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds,
limited partnerships or other vehicles that have no liquidity issues. The Fund’'s overall liquidity risks are
monitored on a monthly basis by the Manager.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Fund’s investment restrictions, as defined in the Prospectus, some of which pertain to the
management of liquidity risk and concentrations thereof, include restrictions in respect of investment in
closed-ended funds, restrictions in respect of redemptions, restrictions in respect of the percentage
holding allowable in any individual investment fund. Liquidity risk is monitored on a continuous basis by
the Trustee of the Fund. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches,
and situations where holdings come close to restriction levels.

All of the Fund's liabilities are payable within one year.

As the reporting date the following investee funds had put in place restrictions which limit the Fund’s
ability to redeem its investment holdings.

Market Value

30 April 2012

US$'000

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class N, Series 1 304

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 1 441

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 2 20
Halcyon Offshore Asset-Backed Value Fund Ltd. - Restricted Class January

2012 -

765

15 DISTRIBUTION POLICY

All shares in issue are accumulating shares. The Manager, therefore, does not recommend the payment
of a dividend to the shareholders. All income will be “rolled-up”, thereby income will not be distributed
but will be retained in the Fund and reflected in the net asset value per share.

16 FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES

The following foreign exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into the reporting
currency (US Dollars):

As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
Euro 0.7553 0.6731

17 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 April 2012 and 30 April 2011, the Fund did not have any significant commitments or
contingent liabilities.

18 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

On 30 October 2011 the Fund changed its name from HSBC Distressed Markets Fund to HSBC Credit
Market Opportunities Fund due to a change in the investment focus of the Fund. As a result the net

asset value per share at 30 October 2011 was rebased to USD 100 or Euro 100 as appropriate, and

the number of shares held by each shareholder was amended accordingly. The following changes were
also made to the Fund’'s scheme particulars; (a) the Fund may borrow up to a total of 25% of its NAV
for a period of up to six months (previously three months) to cover a cash shortfall caused by

mismatched settlement dates on purchase and sale transactions and to fund redemptions; (b) as at the

last Business Day of each calendar quarter, at least 15% of the Fund’s NAV shall be capable of

redemption for value within three months; (c) Redemption terms are quarterly with 95 days’ notice

(previously monthly with 45 days’ notice), and any shareholder redeeming during the first 12 months of

the date of its investment will be subject to a 5% early exit fee.

19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no significant events subsequent to the year end date that require adjustment to, or
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2012 (UNAUDITED)

Security Description Holding Market value % of total
US$'000 net assets
USD (2011: 105.81%)
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class N, Series 1 193 304 0.48
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 1 312 441 0.69
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 2 14 20 0.03
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 3 5,500 5,732 8.97
Castle Hill Total Return Fund Ltd. - USD Fee Paying
Restricted, Series 1111 45,000 4,519 7.07
CQS ABS Alpha Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B2 3,954 4,039 6.31
CQS ABS Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B 1,652 6,770 10.59
Halcyon Offshore Asset-Backed Value Fund Ltd. - Initial
Series Restricted Class 3,551 6,253 9.78
Halcyon Offshore Asset-Backed Value Fund Ltd. - Restricted
Class January 2012 1 - 0.00
King Street Europe Ltd. NYKSE - Class A, Series 7 79,689 9,122 14.27
OZ Europe Overseas Fund Il Ltd. - Tranche L Prime
Restricted No Special Investments Class 7,000 7,003 10.95
Sothic Capital European Opportunities Fund Ltd. - USD
Class A Restricted 59,165 6,269 9.81
50,472 78.95
Portfolio of Investments 50,472 78.95
Net current assets (including derivatives) 13,454 21.05
Total net assets 63,926 100.00
Net asset value per share As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund — US Dollar Class US$101.37 US$119.00
HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund — Institutional Class US$101.53 US$120.20
(US Dollar)
HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund — Euro Class EUR101.18 EUR119.21
Portfolio Classification As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
% of Portfolio % of Portfolio
Securities with an official stock exchange listing 13.41% 32.56%
Unlisted securities 86.59% 67.44%
100.00% 100.00%
Sector Allocation As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2011
Distressed 40.90% -
Cash & Expenses 21.10% -
Credit Long/Short 16.90% -
Event Driven 10.90% -
Multi-Strategy 10.20% -
Multi-Strategy/Event Driven - 24.40%
High Yield/Distressed - 75.60%
100.00% 100.00%
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2012*
(UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Description Nominal Cost
US$'000
King Street Europe Ltd. NYKSE - Class A, Series 7 79,689 9,000
OZ Europe Overseas Fund Il Ltd. - Tranche L Prime Restricted No Special
Investments Class 7,000 7,000
CQS ABS Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B 1,651 6,500
Halcyon Offshore Asset-Backed Value Fund Ltd. - Initial Series Restricted Class 3,551 6,000
Sothic Capital European Opportunities Fund Ltd. - USD Class A Restricted 59,164 6,000
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 3 5,500 5,500
Castle Hill Total Return Fund Ltd. - USD Fee Paying Restricted, Series 1111 45,000 4,500
CQS ABS Alpha Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B2 3,953 4,000
TCF SPV Ltd. - Class USD, Series 26 20,601 1,993
Owl Creek Overseas Fund Ltd. - Side Pocket Share Partner Class USD, Series 5 586 586
Sales
Description Nominal Proceeds
US$'000
Halcyon Offshore Asset-Backed Value Fund Ltd. - Initial Series Restricted Class 17,544 29,807
JCAM Gilobal Fund Ltd. - Class F, Series 1 June 09 23,751 27,453
CQS ABS Feeder Fund - Class B USD 6,674 27,385
Jabcap Global Balanced Fund - Class D2 USD 157,463 22,158
Brevan Howard Credit Catalysts Fund - Class A USD 143,874 19,451
Green T G2 Fund Ltd. - Class A 84,780 15,747
Trafalgar Catalyst Fund - Class USD B, Series 5 162,216 15,696
Beach Point Total Return Offshore Fund Il Ltd. - Series V - 01Nov2007 13,084 14,330
Owl Creek Overseas Fund - Class AR Series 26 Apr 10 12,500 9,751
Claren Road Credit Fund Ltd. - Class B, Series 33 5,321 8,099
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class N, Series 1 3,053 3,823
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 1 2,126 2,902
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 2 1,598 1,784
TCF SPV Ltd. - Class USD, Series 26 20,601 1,302
Owl Creek Overseas Fund Ltd. - Side Pocket Share Partner Class USD, Series 5 586 677
Owl Creek Overseas Fund Ltd. - Side Pocket Reserve 86,974 82

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security
exceeding 2% of the net assets of the Fund at the start of the year. In any event, the 20 largest
purchases and the 20 largest sales must be shown.
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LI MI TED

Notes 2011 2010
Uuss Uuss

NON- CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and eqgbi pment 85, 906 171,413
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equival et s 23,035,098 34,596, 774
Amounts due from funds3s&i/nder 18,600, 684 17,510, 581
management
Amounts due from fellow subsidiab®0, 000 500, 000
compani es
Ot her Assets 2 621, 164 385, 146
Current assets 42,756, 946 52,992,501
CURRENT LI ABILITIES
Amounts due to fellow Qubsidiaryg, 938, 491 2,146, 206
compani es
Amounts due to related9companiedg, 111, 137 5,129,020
Other liabilities 10 15,233,695 16, 700, 686
Current liabilities 21,283,323 23,975,912
Net current assets 21,473,623 29,016, 589
Net assets 21,559,529 29,188, 002
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Called up share capitall 157,762 157,762
Retained earnings 21,401,767 29,030, 240
Total sharehol der s’ equity 21,559,529 29,188,002
The financial statements on pages 6 to 18 were approved
and are signed on its behalf by:
P HARWOOD M QUARRI NGTON
DI RECTOR DI RECTOR
The notes on pages 10 to 18 form an integral part of the
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LI MI TED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSI VE | NCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

Not es 2011 2010
Uss Uss USs$ US$
| NCOME

Management f e3es 81,573,964 83,9
Sundry i ncome 128,279

Foreign exchange 23,491 -
gain

I nterest

, 457

[oclNe)]
O

ncaome 1,731 -

81,727, 465 83,966, 541
EXPENSES

Commi ssi ons 3 39, 34
I nvest ment addvisdly9?2
fees

Trustee and custdaAdyl79, 463 5,538, 368
fees

Sal aries and12 2,525,921 2,078,242
benefits

Ot her expensels 799, 132 721, 232
Management fees paid

to group company 404, 2
De [ 11,7
Fe
n o
di
Fo

88
eciation2é&5 1 , 54
paid to
executive 64, 302 61, 633
ctors

r
s
e
eign exchange - 129,132
s
e

—~+wnw =S S 5 T

I o
I n rest expense - 367

(69, 355, 938) (68,815,219

PROFI' T BEFORE 12,371,527 15,151, 322
TAXATI ON

TAXATI ON 8 - -

TOTAL COMPREHENSI VE | NCOME1 FOR7 T HE2 ¥EAR 15,151, 322

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form an integral part of t he
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HSBC MANAGEMENT ( GUERNSEY) LI MITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES I N EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 D

Share CapRéendined Ear niTrogsal Equity

UusSs UsSs UsSs

AT 1 JANUARY 2011 157,762 29,030,240 29,188,002

Tot al Comprehensive I ncome-for 12,371
the year

, 527 12,371,527

Transactions with owner s, - (20, 000
recorded directly in equity:
Dividend paid (US$200 per share)

, 000020, 000, 000)

AT 31 DECEMBER 2011 157,762 21,401,767 21,559,529

Share CapRéethined EarniTogsal Equi ty

Uss$ UsSs$ Uss
AT 1 JANUARY 2010 157,762 13,878,918 14,036,680
Tot al Comprehensive I ncome-for 15,151,322 15,151,322
the year
AT 31 DECEMBER 2010 157,762 29,030,240 29,188,002

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form an integral part of t
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HSBC MANAGEMENT ( GUERNSEY) LI MITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Notes 2011 2010
Uss Uuss

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATI NG ACTI VI TI ES

Profit before tax 12,371,527 15,151, 322
Adjust ments for:

- Depreciation 5 111, 754 116, 953
Cash flow from operating activities before

changes in working capital 12,483,281 15,268, 275
Changes in working capital

- (Il'ncrease)hdethemasassets (1,326, 121) 776, 193

- (Decrease)/increase in other | i ab2i,l6i9t2i,es89) 2,563, 896

8,464,571 18,608, 364

Net cash generated from operating a8ct4i6vdi,tsi7els 18, 608, 364

CASH FLOWS USED I N I NVESTI NG ACTI VI TIES

Purchase of property, plamnt and equ(dnedd7) (89, 536)

Cash used in investing activities (26, 247) (89, 536)

CASH FLOWS USED I N FI NANCI NG ACTI VI TIES

Dividend paid to sharehol ders (20, 000, 000) -

Cash used in financing activities(20,000, 000) -

NET (DECREASE)/ | NCREASE I N CASH AND, £EABH676)18, 518, 828
EQUI VALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUI VALENTS AT THE BE&SLHL| NN6 NG74 16, 077, 946
OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUI VALENTS AT 31 DEZEMBER, 098 34,596, 774

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form an integral part of t he
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LI MI TED
NOTES TO THE FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS

COMPANY’' S I NCORPORATI ON

HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (the® Company’) was r

The Company is domiciled in Guernsey and a wholly own
(Guernsey) Limited which is registered in Guernsey. The
which is a publicly quoted company incorporated in the I
The principal activity noafn atgheemeCotmpoafnya ivsartiheet y of funds
1. BASI'S OF PREPARATI ON

(aHSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSE¥)s LiMI TEDanci al statemen

(b

I nternational Financi al Reporting Standards (‘I FRS’)
in compliance with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2
i ssued by the I nternational Accounting Standards B
interpretations issued by the International Financi
i

ts predecessor body.

Standar ds, amendments and interpretations that are |
Il FRS 9 Financi al I nstruments was published on 12
Financi al I nstrument s: Recognition and Measur ement .
measur ement mo d e | and establishes two primary meas:
amortised cost and fair value. The basis of classif
mo d e | and the contractual cash flow characteristic
eliminates the existing I AS 39 categories of held t
and receivabl es. The standard is effective for annu

2015 but may be applied earlier.

The preparation of financi al information requires t
future conditions. Use of available information and
the formation of estimates. Act ual results in the f

Esti mates and underlying assumpti onsRewies ircenvs etwe da cod
estimates are recognized in the period in which the
periods affected.

I n the opinion of management, al | nor mall and recurrtr

fair presentation of the Company’s net i ncome, fin
financi al statements have been made.

152/210



EDINETOOOO
0000000000000000000000(E15060)
0o00000000o0ooooood
HSBC MANAGEMENT ( GUERNSEY) LI MITED
NOTES TO THE FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. PRI NCI PAL ACCOUNTI NG POLI CI ES

The following accounting policies have been applied c¢
considered materi al in relation to the Company’s finan
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measur e
environment in which the Company operTaheesse (f'itrhaen cfiuanlc tsit
are presented in US dollars, which is the Company’s fu
Foreign exchange

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the
prevailing on the datMenef aryamsasetisomnd | iabilities
currencies are translated into the functional curren
bal ance sheet date. Any resulting exchange differences
period Non- monetary assets and Iliabilities that are
foreign currency are translated into the functional <cu
of the initial transaction. Non- monetary assets and | i
currency are translated into the functional currency
fair value was determined.

Property, plant and equi pment

Property, pl ant and equi pment are stated at cost | ess
Depreciation is calculated at the following annual r at
pl ant and equi pment over their estimated useful i ves
Furniture, fixture and fiD®tings

Computer hardware and reBat&ad3%oftware

Computer software costs, ot her than those specificall)
and are expensed as incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and
invest ments that are readily convertible to known amc
insignificant risk of change in value. Such invest men
mont hs’ to maturity from the date of acquisition, and
money at <call, |l oans and advances to banks.

Revenue recognition

Management fees and administration fees aRer facrcmamd e df
are recogni sed when the entitlement to performance fee

Il nvest ment s

I nvest ments held in other assets are measured at fair
in the statement of comprehensive income within sundry
by way of forfeit, as initial investors have failed to
the directors to sell these default investment s.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT ( GUERNSEY) LI MITED
NOTES TO THE FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. FEES
Management and trustee fees
The Company receives management fees and trustee fees
the respect Maerafamdat and trustee fees are recognized
Commi ssi ons
The Company, at its discretion, has agreed to pay ret
subsidiaries, affiliates and associates of the HSBC
parties introducing subscribers to funds under manage
firstly a return of the initial charge and secondly an
asset value of monies introduced byCammitss iacins wdirn € ha o @
on an accruals basis.
Il nvest ment advisory fees
The Company pays investment advisory fees to fellow s
entities and third parties providing invest memve atdme rct
advisory fees are accounted for on an accruals basis.
Manager's performance fees
Under the management agreement with the HSBC Multi- A
Alternative Portfolio Funds, HSBC Alternative |l nvest me
the Company is entitled to receive a performance ffee.
performance fees received with associates Pand oirmaastemd
totalling US$1,992, 466 have been received in the year
An expense for performance fees payable is recognized
i ncome is established.

4. OTHER EXPENSES
Ot her expense include rental charges of UsS$ 91, 250 (
|l essee. The premises of the Company are rented and thi
property |l ease is currently being negotiated
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MI TED
STATEMENTS

(Continued)

5

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUI PMENT

Fixtures and Computer Tot al
fittings hardware &
rel ated
sof tware
Uuss Uuss UusSs
COST
At 1 January 2011 162,502 1,000,120 1,162,622
Additions - 26, 247 26, 247
Di sposal - - -
At 31 December 2011 162,502 1,026, 367 1,188,869
DEPRECI ATI ON
At 1 January 2011 117,827 873, 382 991, 209
Charge for year 5,658 106, 096 111, 754
Di sposal - - -
At 31 December 2011 123,485 979,478 1,102, 963
NET BOOK AMOUNT 39,017 46, 889 85,906
At 31 December 2011
At 31 December 2010 44,675 126, 738 171, 413
CASH AND CASH EQUI VALENTS
l ncluded in cash and cash equivalents as at 31 Decemb
HSBC Private Bank (C.Il.) Limited, of Wu%2 3ng0 3250,1019 & h(e2 (
earned US$ 1,731 interest on these balances (2010: USS$
AMOUNTS DUE FROM FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT
2011 2010
Uuss Uss
Management fees 17,478,900 16, 706, 979
Ot her fees 860, 098 511, 595
Trustee fees 261,686 292,007
18,600,684 17,510,581
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HSBC MANAGEMENT
NOTES TO THE FI NANCI AL

( GUERNSEY) LI MITED

STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. TAXATI ON

The company is taxed at the @afpplicable standard rate o
9 .AMOUNTS DUE TO GROUP COMPANI ES
2011 2010
Uuss UusSs
Amounts due to fellow subsidiarl, TI8paNl es 2,146, 206
Amounts due to related companieds, 111, 137 5,129,020
6,049,628 7,275,226
Amounts due to Group Companies are unsecured, interest
100THER LI ABILITIES
2011 2010
Uuss$ Uuss
Commi ssion payabl e 13,989,479 15,440, 941
Ot her creditors 1,244,216 1,259,745
15,233,695 16, 700, 686
11SHARE CAPI TAL
2011 2010
Aut hori sed: £ £
100,000 ordinary shares of £1 eakhm0, 000 100, 000
Allotted, called up and fully pai dUSs$ Uss
100,000 ordinary shares of £1 each
(transl ated at historic cost) 157,762 157,762
The ordinary shares which represent the equity interes
. They carry the right to any fixed dividend as may
Directors and declared by the Company;
. They have voting rights with each share carrying o
. Al | ordinary shares rank equally with regard to th
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HSBC MANAGEMENT ( GUERNSEY) LI MITED
NOTES TO THE FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12RELATED PARTY TRANSACTI ONS

Al | related party transactions were made on terms eqg
|l ength transactions and have been disclosed in these |
Apart from transactions and balances disclosed el sewh
entered into the following transactions with its fe
compani es:
2011 2010
Uuss$ UsSs
| NCOME STATEMENT
I nterest i ncome 1,731 -
Il nterest expense - (367)
Commi ssions (18,098, 851) (15,895,502
Il nvest ment advisory fees (18,975, 794) (19,732,098
Trustee and custody fees (1,164, 710) (1,133, 436)
Al |l staff acting on behalf of the Company are empl o)
(PBCI1) . On a monthly basi s, PBCI i nvoices the Compar
operations. For the year ended 31 December 2011, f
Uuss$2,525,921 (2010: US$2,078,242) for salaries and be

13FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

The tot al net asset of

fun e Company’ s
Us$5,909,807,390 (2010: USS$6,

14CLI ENT ACCOUNTS

The tot al bal ance of client accounts at 31 December
Uuss$se686, 075) .

157/210



EDINETOOOO
0000000000000000000000(E15060)
0o00000000o0ooooood
HSBC MANAGEMENT ( GUERNSEY) LI MITED
NOTES TO THE FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15.RI SK MANAGEMENT
(a)Credit ri sk management

Credit ri sk is the risk that financial |l oss ari se
counterparty to meet its obligations undléhre aCocnopnatnrya
standards, policies and procedures dedicated to cont

activities.

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with HSBC
the credit risk to be minimal

Ot her assets represent accrued bank interest receive
from funds under management which are short term in

(bMar ket ri sk management

Mar ket risk is the risk that the value of funds under nm
i ncome.
The Company manages mar ket risk through risk I imits ap|]

Commi ttee (ALCO).

(c) Foreign exchange exposure

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value o
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The C
from changes in the US$ equivalent value of amounts
out bel ow:
2011 2010
Uuss UsSs$
ASSETS
Euro 422,669 637,649
British Pound 249,920 413,151
Swiss Franc 227,892 185, 375
Japanese Yen 44,242 1,473
Chinese Yuan 148 -
Singapore Doll ar 17 -

LI ABI'LI'TIES

British Pound 43,755 57,604
Swiss Franc - 24,697
Sensitivity analysis
A 5 percent strengthening of the US doll ar against
would have resulted in the prAofb tpse r(cleonsts ewse)a ksehnoiwing boef
would have had the equal but opposite effect to the
that all ot her variabl es, in particular interest rat
2011 2010
Uuss UsSs
Euro 21, 133 31,882
British Pound 14,684 17,777
Swiss Franc 11, 395 8,034
Japanese Yen 2,212 74
Chinese Yuan 7 -
Singapore Doll ar 1 -
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HSBC MANAGEMENT ( GUERNSEY) LI MITED
NOTES TO THE FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15.RI SK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d)YLiquidity management

Liqguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encount
raising funds to meet commitments.
The Company wuses various sources to provide a stable fu
in instant access call accounts, inter-group funding anc
(e)Capi tal management
The Company is regulated by the Guernsey Financi al S
capital requirements for the Company as described on
Company’s capital to ensure compliance with the re
Services Commi ssi on.
(f)lnterest risk management
The Company's exposure to interest rate risk is |ir
(note 6). The Company only maintains interest bearin
ri sk is minimal
(g)Operational ri sk management
Operational ri sk is the risk of | oss arising through fr
inefficiency, systems failure or from external event s.
and covers a wide spectrum of 1issues.

The HSBC Group manages this risk through a control s-&
document ed, aut horisation is independent and transact.
supported by an independent programme of periodic rev
monitoring external operational ri sk events, which ensut
practarcde takes account of |l essons | earned from public
financi al services industry.

The HSBCh&souapdi fied its operational ri sk management pr
This explains how the HSBC Group manages operational r
controlling and mitigating the ri sk, rectifying opera
addi tional procedures required for compl i anceprwctehs sl eos
undertaken to manage operational ri sk are determined by
Group operation. The HSBC Group standard covers the foll

. Operational ri sk management responsi bility is as
within the business operation;

. I nformati on systems are used to record the identi
ri sks and generate appropriate, regul ar managemen

. Operational risks are identified by risk assessme
each business and risks inherent in processes, ac
incorporates a regular review of risks identified

. Operational risk Iloss data is collected and repor
covers aggregate operational risk |l osses and det
threshol d; and

. Ri sk mitigation, including insurance, i s consider

Local management is responsible for |1 mplementation
risk.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT ( GUERNSEY) LI MITED
NOTES TO THE FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15.RI SK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(h)Reputational ri sk management

The safeguarding of HSBC's reputation is of paramount i
the responsibility of every member of staff. Reputatio
environment al i ssues, or as a consequence of operational
reputation depends upon the way in which it conducts it
way in which clients, to whom it provides financial ser\
Reputational risks are considered and assessed by the

Management Meeting, subsidiary company boards, board coc
formul ation of policy and the establishment of HSBC st
business are set for HSBC and for individual subsidiari
which are an integral part of the internal control sSys
statements of policy and are promulgated through interm
set out operational procedures in al/l areas of reput g
deterrence, environment al i mpact, anti-corruption measur

The Group internal audit function monitors compliance wi
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HSBC MANAGEMENT ( GUERNSEY) LI MITED
STATEMENT OF FI NANCI AL RESOURCES AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

UsSs
Net Assets
Net assets after adjustments 27,023,251
Less
Contingent I|iabilities that require disclosure or-provi
Position risk (155, 291)
Counterparty risk -
Net assets after adjustments, contingent | i ab2él,i8t6i7e s9 6 O
SATI SFACTI ON OF FI NANCI AL RESOURCES
Financial resources 26,867,960
Financi al resources required (906, 099)

NET SURPLUS FI NANCI AL RESOURCES 25,961,861
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HSBC

2012 30

2018 30

18,319,6791, 439, 927
1,119,639 88, 004

69, 089 5,430

500, 000 39,300
10,300,328 809,606

8, 934 702

30,317,6692, 382, 969

4,984,302 391, 766
13,316, 3241, 046, 663
18,300,6261, 438, 429

157,762 12,400
21,401,7671,682,179
(15,000, 0001,179,000
5,457,514 428,961
12,017,043 944,540

30,317,6692, 382, 969
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2018 30
3,727 293
3,727 293
33,851,2882,660, 711

(14,804,916)1, 163, 666
(11,892,960)934, 787)

7,153,413 562,258
639, 5309 50, 268
(477,974) (37,5609)
161,565 12,699

7,318,705 575,250
(134,964) (10,608)
(699,777) (55,002)
(323,243) (25,407)
(132,933) (10,449)
(376,316) (29,578)
(57,344) (4,507)

(1,724,577)(135,552)

5,594,128 439,698
(136,614) (10,738)

5,457,514 428,961

5,457,514 428,961

5,457,514 428,961

(15,000,000}),179,000

(9

., 542, 486)( 750, 039)
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HSBC c. |
HSBC Private Bank C. 1. Limited

24 2,496 19 6,186

60 GY1l 1EE

HSBC 20 31 HSBC
State Street Custodial Services I|Ireland Limited

24 200, 000 2,482

HSBC

State Street Fund Services Ireland Limited

24 350,000 4, 344

HSBC

HSBC
HSBC Alternative Investments Limited

24 1,078,543 8,477

SW1A 1J8B 78
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Services (Guernsey) Ltd.

HSBC

10 7,798
110
137,143
396 8, 235 2,278 6,390 12¢
UFJ 10.13
|
cC. 1. Limited

State Street Custodi al Services | reland Limited
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State Street Fund Services Ilreland Limited
HSBC

HSBC Al ternative I nvestments Limited

HSBC

HSBC Securities Services (Guernsey) Ltd.

HSBC HSBC

HSBC HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
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2008 10 29 1987
POI
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1998
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Trian Partner s, Lt d.

Trian Fund Manag|lemen
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D. E. Shaw Composite Intermational Fund

D. E. D. E. Shaw & Co. , L.|[L. C.

Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd.
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Pershing Square International, Ltd.

Pershing Square Capital Management , L. P.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (the “Company”) for
the year ended 31 December 2010 which comprise the statement of comprehensive income, balance sheet,
statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and the related notes. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the 1ASB.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 262 of the
Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page 3, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed;
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors; and the overall
presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information
in the report of the Directors to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If
we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report.
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Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
. give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2010
and of its profit for the year then ended,
. are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the 1ASB;
and
. comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008

Opinion on other matters
We have examined the statement of financial resources set out on page 18 and in our opinion the
financial resources requirement specified in Rule 2 of the Licensees (Capital Adequacy) Rules 2010 was
satisfied at 31 December 2010.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Guernsey) Law 2008
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. the Company has not kept proper accounting records, or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
. we have not received all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief are necessary for the purpose of our audit.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Chartered Accountants

21 April 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

We have audited the financial statements of HSBC Special Opportunities Fund (the “Fund”) for the year
ended 30 April 2012 which comprise the Statement of Total Return, the Statement of Movement in Net
Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow
Statement and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards.

This report is made solely to the Fund’s shareholders, as a body in accordance with rule 4.02(3) of the
Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules, 1990. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Fund’s shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’'s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and the Fund’s shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager’s Responsibilities set out on page 5, the Manager is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Manager; and the overall presentation of
the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual
report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

e (give a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at 30 April 2012 and of its loss for
the year then ended,;

e are in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules,
1990 and the principal documents.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Collective Investment Schemes
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(Class B) Rules, 1990 require us to report to you if, in our opinion:

e the Manager has not kept proper accounting records; or

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief are necessary for the purpose of our audit.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Guernsey
Date: 20 September 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

We have audited the financial statements of HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund (the “Fund”) for the
year ended 30 April 2012 which comprise the Statement of Total Return, the Statement of Movement in
Net Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares, the Balance Sheet and the
related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards.

This report is made solely to the Fund’s shareholders as a body in accordance with rule 4.02(3) of the
Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules, 1990. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Fund’s shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’'s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and the Fund’s shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager’s Responsibilities set out on page 5, the Manager is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Fund’'s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Manager; and the overall presentation of
the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual
report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

e (give a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at 30 April 2012 and of its loss for
the year then ended,;

e are in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules,
1990 and the principal documents.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the terms of our engagement require
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us to report to you if, in our opinion:

e the Manager has not kept proper accounting records; or

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief are necessary for the purpose of our audit.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Guernsey
Date: 20 September 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (the “Company”) for
the year ended 31 December 2011 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Balance
Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Cash Flow Statement and related notes. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’).

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 262 of the
Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 3, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and lIreland). Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,;
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors; and the overall
presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information
in the Report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become
aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our
report.
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Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:
. give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of its
profit for the year then ended,
. are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the IASB; and
. comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.

Opinion on other matters

We have examined the statement of financial resources set out on page 19 and in our opinion the
financial resources requirement specified in Rule 2 of the Licensees (Capital Adequacy) Rules 2010 was
satisfied at 31 December 2011.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Guernsey) Law,
2008 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. the Company has not kept proper accounting records; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief are necessary for the purpose of our audit.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Chartered Accountants

16 March 2012
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